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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of National Petrochemical Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
Repert on the Audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of National Petrochemical Company, A Saudi Joint
Stock Company (“the Company™) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group™), which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of
income and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated

statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and
pronouncements that are issued by the Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted cur audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with professional code of conduct and ethics endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia that are relevant to our zudit of the consolidated financial statements, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements, We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consofidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each key audit matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fuifilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(2/6)

To the shareholders of National Petrochemical Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial $tatements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Uncertain Zakat Position

The Company files its zakat returns with the General Authority
of Zakat and Tax (“GAZT") on an annual basis. The GAZT
raised assessments for the years from 2011 to 2C13 claiming
additional zakat liability of SR 95.5 million. The Company has
filed an appeal against the additional zakat liability with the
Preliminary Appeal Committee ("PAC"). Subsequently, the
Company received revised zakat assessments for the years
from 2011 to 2013 from the GAZT claiming additional zakat
liabifity of SR 5.74 million. The Company accepted and paid SR
3.47 million and filed an appeal for the remaining balance SR
2.27 million with the Higher Appeai Committee ("HAC") and
the HAC's hearing is awaited.

The GAZT raised an assessment for the years from 2014 to
2016 claiming additional zakat liability of SR 204.2 million.
The Company has filed an appeal against the additional zakat
liability with the Preliminary Appeal Committee ("PAC™ and
the PAC’s hearing is awaited.

The Group’s management believes that the provision made in
the consolidated statements of financial position is adequate
to cover any additional zakat liability that may arise from
GAZT,

We considered this as a key audit matter as it involves
significant management judgment, and the related additional
assessments by GAZT and related zakat provisions are
material to the consolidated financial statements.

We performed the following procedures in
relation to the additional assessed zakat
fiability and related zakat provisions:

® Evaluated the appropriateness of the zakat
provision provided by the Group given the
related zakat assessments issued by GAZT
for all years under appeal and for the years
which still under GAZT's review;

e Gained an understanding of the process
that management followed to assess the
impact of the assessments and the reasons
for such differences between the positions
of the Company and GAZT:

s Performed a retrospective review of
management’s judgement refated to simiiar
cases in prior periods;

® Together with specialists in our team,
evaluated the reasonableness of
management’s assessment for the
accounting of the uncertain zakat position
in the light of zakat regulations, recent
practices of GAZT and merits of the appeal
filed with GAZT against the assessments
raised; and

e Assessed the appropriateness of the
disclosure made in relation to the
assessments issued by GAZT in respect of
claiming additional zakat liability and the
status of the related appeals.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(3/6)

To the shareholders of National Petrochemical Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Adoption of IFRS 16

As of 1 January 2019, IFRS 16 (Leases) became effective.
IFRS 16 requires the Group to assess all its |ease contracts
and recognize depreciation, right of use and the lease liability,

The management performed a detailed analysis of each lease
contract to identify the differences between the requirements
of the old and new standard, identify the changes required to
be made to existing accounting policies and determine the
transition adjustments and consequential changes to
processes and controls required particularly in connection with
identification of whether an arrangement meets the definition
of a lease,

This standard introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all
leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value., A lessee is required to
recognize a right-of-use (“ROU") asset representing its right to
use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments.

The Group has chosen to apply IFRS 16 “Leases” under the
modified retrospective approach. Under the modified

retrospective method, comparative consolidated financial
information is not restated and continues to be reported under
the accounting standards in effect for those periods.

Management also assessed the disclosure requiremants of the
new standard tc be made in the consolidated financial
statements.

We considered this as a key audit matter because the
calculations of amounts underlying the right of use assets and
the corresponding lease liabilities involve new processes for
collecting datz, complex rules and the application of
significant management judgment.

We performed the following procedures in
relation to the adoption IFRS 16:

® Reviewed management’s assessment of the
impact of IFRS 16 in terms of the
classification and measurement of its right
of use assets and lease liabilities, and
understood the approach taken towards
implementation;

* Assessed the accuracy of the lease data by
testing on a sample basis, the lease data
captured by management through the
inspection of lease documents;

® Tested fease schedules on a sample basis,
by recalcutating the amounts underlying the
right of use assets and lease liabilities,
based on the terms on the lease contracts.
We also tested the arithmetical accuracy of
those individual lease schedules;

® Evaluated the accuracy of the discount
rates applied in the computation of the
lease liability obligations; and

® Assessed the adequacy of the Group's
disclosure included in the consolidated
financial statements in relation fto the
implementation of the new standard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITCR'S REPQRT

To the shareholders of National Petrochemical Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Other information included in The Group's 2019 Annual Report
Other information consists of the information included in the Group’s 2019 annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Management is responsible for the other

information in its annual report. The Greup's 2019 annual report is expecied to be made available to us after
the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
infermation is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Group's 2019 annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with International Financia! Reporting Standards that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia and other standards and pronouncements that are issued by the Saudi Organization for Certified Public
Accountants and the provisions of Companies’ Law and Company’s By-faws, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using

the going concern basis of accounting uniess management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operatians, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the shareholders of National Petrochemical Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom

of Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not defecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal controf relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditicns that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conciusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the

date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the censolidated financial statements. We

are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain salely
responsible faor our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controi that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the sharehalders of National Petrachemical Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or reguiation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

for Ernst §

Waleed G.Tawfig
Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 437

10 Rajab 1441H
5 March 2020

Al-Khobar



National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and

its subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Note SR 006" SR "000"
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 7 14,175,165 15,019,709
Right of use asset 8 69,280 -
Employees’ loans 9 138,978 128,464
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 14,383,423 15,148,173
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade receivables 10 906,097 1,035,382
Inventories 11 917,803 1,105,457
Prepayments and other receivables 12 85,557 256,922
Amounts due from related parties 13 237,226 221,326
Cash and cash equivalents 14 2,485,617 3,251,537
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 4,632,300 5,870,624
TOTAL ASSETS 19,015,723 21,018,797
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 15 4,800,000 4,800,000
Statutory reserve 16 415,317 347,870
Retained earnings 2,932,677 2,592 311
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY 8,147,994 7,740,181
Non-controlling interests 17 4,101,801 3,648,431
TOTAL EQUITY 12,24%,795 11,388,612
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Term loans 18 3,435,135 4,850,920
Non-controlling partner's subordinated loan 19 182,696 413,927
Non-current portion of lease liability 21 52,097 -
Deferred tax liabilities, net 24 326,273 311,035
Employees’ benefits 22 231,162 163,087
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,227,363 5,738,989
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables 203,467 37,962
Amounts due to related partics 13 208,054 209,581
Current portion of term loans 18 1,210,425 1,374,772
Sukuk-current portion 20 - 1,078,000
Current portion of fease liability 21 12,917 g
Accrued expenses and other payables 23 337,824 605,204
Zakat and income tax provisions 24 565,878 585,677
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,538,565 3,891,196
TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,765,928 9,630,185
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 19,015,723 21,018,797
Chairman of the Board of Directors Designated member Chief accountant
Hamad Al Sayari Abdulrahman Alismail Marzoug Al-Shamari

The attached notes 1 to 36 form part of these consolidated financial statements




National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its

subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Note SR 000" SR "000"
Sales 7,434,705 8,930,414
Cost of sales 25 (5,558,716) (6,244,959)
GROSS PROFIT 1,875,989 2,685,455
Selling and distribution expenses 26 {421,931) {471,618}
General and administrative expenses 27 (174,580) (205,001}
OPERATING PROFIT 1,279,478 2,008,836
Other income, net 28 98,160 231,648
Finance costs 29 (221.,326) (309,373)
INCOME BEFORE ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX 1,156,312 1,931,111
Zakat and income tax:
Current tax 24 (52,133) (97,126}
Deferred tax 24 (15,218) (35,015)
Zakat 24 (70,800} (98,620)
NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR 1,418,161 1,700,350
NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
- Shareholders of the Company 674,470 1,165,382
- Non-controlling interests 17 343.691 534,968
1,018,161 1,700,350
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME
Re-measurement (loss) gain on defined benefit plans 22 (40,649) 28,151
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 977,512 1,728,501
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
- Shareholders of the Company 647.813 1,183,680
- Non-controlling interests 17 329,699 544,821
977,512 1,728,501
EARNINGS PER SHARE FORM NET INCOME (Saudi Riyals)
Number of shares outstanding (in thousands) 480,000 480,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share atiributable to the sharcholders
of the Company 30 1.41 2.43
Chairman of the Board of Directors Designated member Chief accountant
Hamad Al Sayari Abdulrahman Alismail Marzoug Al-Shamari

The attached notes | to 36 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and

its subsidiarics

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Cash flow from operating activities
Income betore zakat and income tax
Adjustments to reconcile income before zakat and income tax to net
cash flows from operations:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Adjustment of property, plant and equipment
Finance costs
Employees’ benefits, net
Re-measurement gain on non-controlling partner's subordinated loan
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Working capital adjustments:
Trade receivables
Inventories
Employees' loans, prepayments and other receivables
Amounts due from related parties
Amounts due to related parties
Trade payables
Accrued expenses and other payables

Net cash flows from operations

Finance costs paid
Zakat and income tax paid
Net cash flows from operating activities
Investing activities
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Additions to right to use
Net movement in short term deposits
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net cash flows (used in) from investing activities
Financing activities
Net movement in term loans
Repayment of Sukuk
Repayment of non-controlling partnet's subordinated loan
Income tax reimbursed by non-controlling partner
Payment of lease liabilities
Dividends paid
Net cash flows used in financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The attached notes 1 to 36 form part of these consolidated financial statements.

2019 2018

Noie SR "000" SR 000"
1,156,312 1,931,111
866,117 1,115,424
20,379 _

- 4,881

221,326 309,373
27,426 25,859
(5,508) -
(968) {68)
2,285,084 3,386,580
129,285 73,565
187,654 (12,519)
148,832 (188,036)
(15,900) 7,184
(1,527) (27,782)
165,505 (181,003)
(267,380) 214,360
2,631,553 3,272,347
(205,568) (259,439)
(142,732) (90,571)
2,283,253 2,922.337
(32,802) {69,103)
(113 =

- 358,000

12,197 68
(20,718) 288,965
(1,583,291) (1,773,604)
(1,078,000) (122.000)
(236,250) (446,250
123,671 66,270
(14,585) .
(240,000) (240,000)
(3,028.455) (2,515,584)
(765,920) 695,718
3,251,537 2,555,819
14 2,485,617 3,251,537
{continued)
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and
its subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Note SR 000" SR "000"
Non-cash transactions
Accrued finance cost on non-controlling partner's subordinated loan 10,527 42,189
Amortization of transaction costs on term loans 3,159 5,400
Remeasurement (loss) gain on defined benefit plans (40,649) 28,151
Amounts recognised as right of use asset and lease liability 510 -
Amounts recognised as right of use asset and lease liability when
applying IFRS 16 77,017 -
Amounts recognised as right of use asset when applying IFRS 16
which deducted from prepayments 12,019 -
Accrued interest on lease liabilities 2,072 -
Net amount of non-cash movement in accrued interest - 2,345
Chairman of the Board of Directors Designated member Chief accountant
Hamad Al Sayari Abdulrahman Alismail Marzoug Al-Shamari

The attached notes 1 to 36 form part of these consclidated financial statements.
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2019

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

National Petrochemical Comparny (Petrochem) ("the Company™) is 2 Saudi Joint Stock Company registered under Commercial
Registration Number 1010246363 issued in Riyadh on 8 Rabie I 1429 H (corresponding to 16 March 2008), and it was
established pursuant to the Ministry of Commerce and Industry's resolution number 53/Q dated 16 Safar 1429 H (corresponding
to 23 February 2008).

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the activities of the Company and its following subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group™):

Country of Percentage
incorporation of ownership

Saudi Polymers Company (A Limited Liability Company) Saudi Arabia 65%
United Arab
Gulf Polymers Distribution Company (A Free Zone Limited Liability Company) Emirates 65%

Saudi Polymers Company is a limited liability company registered in Jubail, Saudi Arabia under Commercial Registration
number 2055008886 dated 29 Dhul-Qadah 1428H (correspending to 9 December 2007), with a branch in Jubail under
Commercial Registration number 2055009065,

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the partners of SPCO have resolved to decrease the share capital of SPCO from SR
4,800 million to SR 1,406 million. The legal process for the reduction in capital has not been completed till the year end.

Gulf Polymers Distribution Company FZCO was formed in the Dubai Airport Free Zone on 15 February 2011 as per DAFZA
trade license. The registered address of the company is Dubai Airport Free Zone, Office No.6EA 420, Dubai, United Arab
Emirates.

The Group is engaged in development and establishment, operation and management and maintenance of petrochemical
factories, gas, petroleum and other industries, wholesale and retail trade in material and petrochemical products and its
derivatives.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1  Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (“KSA’) and other standards and pronouncernents that
are issued by Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants (“SOCPA™) (collectively referred to as “IFRSs as endorsed in
KSA™). These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the IFRSs as endorsed in KSA”.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are consistent with those followed in
the preparation of the Group’s annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018, except for the
adoption of new standards effective as of 1 January 2019 (note 5). The Group has not early adopted any other standard,
interpretation or amendrment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 "Leases" from | January 2019 and accounting policies for this new standard is disclosed in
note 5.

2.2 Basis of measurement

The conselidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention using the accruals basis of accounting.
For employee and other post-employment benefits, actuarial present value calculations are used.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Saudi Riyals (SR), which is also the functional currency of the Group
except for the Gulf Polymers Distribution Company FZCO which is translated in these consolidated financial statement from
US Dollar currency to Saudi Rivals currency on a fixed rate of SR 3.75 to 1 US Dollar. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (SR ‘000°), except when otherwise indicated.
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2019

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
23 Basis of consolidation

The censolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 December
2019. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and
only if, the Group has:

a) Power over the investee (i.¢., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee);

b} Expesure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
¢) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this presumption and when the
Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an invesiee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

a) The contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote holders of the investee;
b) Rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
¢) The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary
and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the vear are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the
date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of OCI are attributed to the shareholders of the Company of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments

are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s accounting

policies. All intra-Group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between

members of the Group are eliminated in full on consoclidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the
Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill}, liabilities, non-controlling interest
and other components of equity, while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any investment retained is
recognised at fair value.

2.4  Approval of consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements were approved on 10 Rajab 1441H (corresponding to 5 March 2020).

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrving amount of the asset or liability affected in the future. Other disclosures relating io
the Company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:

+ Capital management
» Financial risk management objectives and policies

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty, and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies (that have the most significant effect on the amount recognized in the financial statements) includes:

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate expected credit losses ("ECLs"} for trade receivables. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer segmenis that have similar loss paiterns (i.e., by geography, product
type, customer type and rating.
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2019

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGMENTS (continued)

These estimates and assumptions are based upon experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances and are used to judge the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised or in the revision period and future periods if the changed estimates
affect both current and future periods except for the significant new judgments and significant sources of estimates and
uncertainties related to the application of IFRS 16 as mentioned below in note 5.

3./  Impairment of trade receivables

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecasted economic conditions
(i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults
in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every repotting date, the historical observed default rates
are updated, and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecasted economic conditions and (""ECLs"™) isa
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecasted economic conditions. The
Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customers’
actual default in the future.

3.2  Impairment of inventories

Inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realizable value. When inventories become old or obsolete, an estimate is made
of their net realizable value. For individually significant amounts this estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amounts
which are not individually significant, but which are old or obsolete, are assessed collectively and a provision applied according
to the inventory type and the degree of aging or obsolescence, based on anticipated selling prices.

3.3 Useful lives of property, piant and equipment

The management determines the estimated useful lives of its equipment for calculating depreciation. This estimate is determined
after considering the expected usage of the asset or physical wear and tear. Management reviews the residual value and useful

lives annually and future depreciation charge would be adjusted when the management believes the useful lives differ from
previous estimates.

3.4  Deferred tax asset/liabilities

The management determines the estimated tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. Judgment is required to determine which
arrangements are considered to be a tax on income as opposed to an operating cost. Judgment is also required to determine
whether deferred tax assets are recognized in the statement of financial position. Deferred tax assets, including those arising
from unutilized tax losses, require management to assess the likelihood that the Group will generate sufficient taxable earnings
in future periods, in order to utilize recognized deferred tax assets. Assumptions about the generation of future taxable profits
depend on management’s estimates of fuiure cash flows. These estimates of future taxable income are based on forecasted cash
flows from operations and judgment about the application of existing tax laws in each jurisdiction.

3.5  Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit ("CGU") exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on
available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow (DCF) model. The
cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet
committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the (CGU) being tested. The
recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the
growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2019

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGMENTS (continued)

3.6 Provisions

By their nature, provisions are dependent upon estimates and assessments whether the criteria for recognition have been met,
including estimates of the probability of cash outflows. Provisions for litigation are based on an estimate of the costs, taking into
account legal advice and other information presently available. Provisions for uncertain liabilities involve management’s best
estimate of whether cash outflows are probable.

3.7  Valuation of defined bhenefit obligations

The cost of the defined benefit pension plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the pension
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and
other assumptions. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers
the interest rates of corporate bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation with
at least an ‘AA’ rating or above, as set by an internationally acknowledged rating agency, and extrapolated as needed along the
yield curve to correspond with the expected term of the defined benefit obligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed
for quality. Those having excessive credit spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds on which the discount rate is based,
on the basis that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.

3.8  Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options

Management of the Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered
by an option to exiend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgment in evaluating
whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all
relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement
date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and
affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold
improvements or significant customization to the leased asset).

Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR)
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and
with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group estimates the
IBR using observable inputs when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is current when it is:

¢ Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

¢ Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

¢ Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for atleast twelve months after
the reporting period.

All other assets arc classified as non-current.
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2019

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Current versus non-current classification {continned)

A liability is current when:
o [t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
o [t is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
« [t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for atleast twelve months after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments such as derivatives, and non-financial assets such as investment properties, at fair
value at each consolidated statement of financial position date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

o In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable.

Level 3 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest fevel input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing the categorization (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting petiod.

The policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement are evaluated periodically.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries

NOTES TG THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2019

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost and stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs
for long-term construction projects (qualifying assets), if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognize such parts as individual assets and depreciates
them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is petformed, its cost is recognized in the
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in the consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive income as incurred.,

Depreciation is calculated from the date the item of property, plant and equipment is available for its intended use or in respect
of self constructed assets, from the date such assets are completed and ready for the intended use. Assets under construction,
which are not ready for its intended use, are not depreciated. Further, the cost of platinum is not depreciated as platinum is a
precious metal, and the value of these assets does not diminish with the usage. The cost of other property, plant and equipment
is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

The estimated useful lives of the assets for the calculation of depreciation are as follows:

Office buildings 25 years
Plant and equipment 10 to 25 years
Furniture, fixture and office equipment 4 to 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive income in the
year the asset is derecognized.

Planned turnaround costs (primarily major repair and maintenance costs) are deferred and amortized over the period until the
date of next planned repair and maintenance. Should unexpected repair and maintenance occur prior to the previously envisaged
planned date, then the previously unamortized costs are immediately expensed and the new major repair and maintenance costs
are deferred and amortized over the period likely to benefit from such costs.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and metheds of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end, and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Group recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use
the underlying asseis.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-ef-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial
direct costs incurred, and [ease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received. Right-of-

use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as
follows:

Land 4-20 years
Warghouses 4 years
Equipments 4 years
Offices and motor vehicles 3-4 years
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2019

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase

option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to
impairment.

Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease

incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
{(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change
in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.c., those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arranpement at the
inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset (or assets) and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset (or assets), even if that asset is (or those assets are)
not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists,
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current marlet assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less
costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
companies or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive
income in expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2019

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount, A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the fast impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impatrment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised
in the consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive income unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Financial instruments — initial recognition, subsequent measurement and derecognition

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are atiributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), amortised cost, or fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The classification is based on two criteria: the Group’s business model for managing
the assets; and whether the instrumentis’ contractual cash flows represent ‘solely payments of principal and interest” on the
principal amount outstanding (the *‘SPPI criterion®).

Financial assets at amortised cost
This category is the most relevant to the Group. The Group measures financial asset at amortised cost that are held within a
business model with the objective to hold the financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that meet the SPPI

criterion. This category includes the Group’s irade and other receivables, and loans included under other non-current financial
assets.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:
o The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
» The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either:
{a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b} the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recogniscs an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial ins¢ruments — initial recognition, subsequent measurement and derecognition (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 requires the Group to record an allowance for expected credit losses (""ECL™) for all loans and other debt financial
assets not held at FVPL.

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s original effective interest
rate.

For trade and other receivables, the Group has applied the standard’s simplified approach and has calculated ECL based on
lifetime expected credit losses. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets (i.c., employee loans), the ECL is based on the 12-month ECL. The 12-month ECL is the pottion
of lifetime ECL that results from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting

date. However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECL.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payment are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and

borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of ioans and
borrowings and payables, net of direcily atiributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowing and non-controlfling partner's
subordinated loan.

Subsequent measurement
The financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized costs.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive income.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Inventories
Inventeries are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present
location and condition are accounted for, as follows:

o Raw materials and spares: purchase cost on a weighted average basis.

» Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads

based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories (continued)

Consumable spare parts

Consumables are ancillary materials which are consumed in the production of semi-finished and finished products.
Consumables may include engineering materials, one-time packaging materials and certain catalysts.

Spare parts are the interchangeable parts of plant and equipment which are considered to be essential to support routine
mainienance, repair and overhaul of plant and equipment or to be used in emergency situations for repairs. The Group maintains
the following different types of spare parts:

* Stand-by equipment items acquired together with the plant/production line or purchased subsequently but related to a
particular plant or production line and will rarely be required are critical to plant operation and must be available at stand-
by at all times. These are capitalized as part of property, plant and equipment and depreciated from the purchase date
over a period which is shorter of the component’s useful life or the remaining useful life of the plant in which it is to be

utilized. These do not form part of inventory, provided that capitalization criteria under property, plant and equipment is
met.

* Repairable items that are plant/production line specific with long lead times and will be replaced and refurbished
frequently (mostly during turnarounds). These arc capitalized as part of property, plant and equipment where the
capitalization criteria are met. Depreciation is started from day of installation of these items in the plant, and the
depreciation period is the shorter of the useful life of the compenent and the remaining useful life of the plant and
equipment in which it is installed. These do not form part of inventory.

General capital spares and other consumable items, are not plant specific and can be used at any time for facilitating
plant operations. They are generally classified as ‘consumable spare parts’ under inventory, unless they exceed the
threshold for capitalization and have a useful life of more than one year, under which case they are recorded under
propetty, plant and equipment (and depreciated similar to repairable items). Spares and consumable under inventories
are subject to assessment for obsolescence provision and are charged to the consolidated statement of income and other
comprehensive income upon their installation or use. The provision is based on a systematic consistent manner
depending on management’s estimates, as well as ageing, actual physical wear and tear, etc. Where such items meet the
criteria for capitalization, their depreciation method is similar to repairable items, as noted above.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Short term investments — bank deposits
Short term investments bank deposits in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise cash at short-term deposits

with original maturities of more than three months but not more than one year from the date of acquisition, which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Saudi Arabian Regulations for Companies, the Group must set aside 10% of its net income for the year
until it has built up a reserve equal to 30% of the share capital. The Group may resolve to discontinue such transfers when the
reserve totals 30% of the share capital. The reserve is not available for distribution.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
» The net income atiributable to shareholders of the Company, excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary
shares.

» By the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial period, adjusted for bonus elements
in ordinary shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Fair value of non-controlling partner's subordinated loan
The fair value of non-controlling partner's subordinated loan is determined based on the vatuation techniques including the
discounted cash flow {(DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where

this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such
as discount rate, liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Zakat and income tax

Zakat is provided in accordance with the Regulations of the General Authority of Zakat and Tax (GAZT) in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia. Under the revised zakat standard issued by the Saudi Organization of Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA),
zakat provision is charged to the consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive income, as TAS 12 Tncome Taxes'
do not provide any guidance on the accounting treatment of zakat. The Non-controlling interests in the Group is subject to
income tax in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current income tax is recognized in the consolidated statement of income and other
comprehensive income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the Group’s tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred income tax liabilities are
recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred income tax assets are recognized on all deductible temporary
difference, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which these assets can be utilized.

The cartying amount of deferred income tax assets/liabilities is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset/liability
to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets/liabilities are re-assessed at each repotting date and are recognized to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Defetred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is

realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date,

Deferred income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss. Deferred income tax
items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current (ax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Withholding tax

The Company withholds taxes on certain transactions with non-resident parties in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, including
dividend payments to the non-Saudi partner, as required under Saudi Arabian Income Tax Law.

Value added tax
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added tax, except:

o When the value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the GAZT, in which case,
the value added tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as
applicable.

» When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of vatue added tax included. The net amount of value added
tax recoverable from, or payable to, the GAZT is included as part of receivables or payables in the consolidated
statement of financial position. .

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for
example undet an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relaiing to a provision is presented in the consolidated statement of income and other
comprehensive income net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted
using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. They are disclosed unless the possibility of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Liabilities which are probable are recorded in the financial

statement under accounts payable and accruals. A contingent asset is not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but
disclosed when an inflow of econoniic benefits is probable.

Employees’ benefits

The Group operates a non-funded employee end-of-service benefit plan, which is classified as defined benefit obligation under
IAS 19 Employee Benefits'. A defined benefit plan is a plan which is not a defined contribution plan. The liability recognized in
the consolidated statement of financial position for a defined benefit plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation ai
the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is calculated by independent actuaries using the projected unit
credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting estimated future cash outflows
using market yields at the end of the reporting period of high quality corporate bonds that have terms to maturity approximating
to the estimated term of the post employment benefit obligations. Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in actuarial
assumptions and experience adjustments are recognized in equity through the consolidated statement of income and other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Revenue form contracts with customers

Sale of products is the only source of revenue. Sales of producis in the consolidated statement of income and other
comprehensive income are recognized when the Group has an obligation to sell the goods, it is able to establish that a contract
exists, the consideration is relatively measurable, and collection is probable. The amounts tecognized as sales of products
represent the fair values of the considerations received or receivable from related parties and third parties on the sales of such
products. The Group’s contracts with customers for the sale of its products generally includes one performance obligation. The
Group recognizes revenue from products sales at the point in time when control of such products is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery.

Finance income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). The
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter petiod, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest income is included in other income
in consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive income.

Expenses

All expenses are recognized on an accrual basis. Operating costs are recognized on a historical cost basis. Production costs and
direct expenses are classified as cost of sales. All other expenses, including selling and distribution expenses not deducted from
sales are classified as selling, general and administrative expenses. Allocation between cost of sales, selling and distribution and
general and administrative expenses, where required, is made on a consistent basis.

Foreign currencies

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Saudi Riyal, which is also the Company’s functional currency.
For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. The Group uses the direct methed of consolidation and on disposal of a foreign
operation, the gain or loss that is reclassified to consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive income reflects the
amount that arises from using this method,

Transaction and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional currency spot rates
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. All differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are taken to the consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive income with the
exception of differences on foreign monetary items that form part of a net investment in a foreign operation. These are
recognised in OCT until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are reclassified to consolidated statement of
income and other comprehensive income. Non-monetaty items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rate as at the date of the initial transaction and are not subsequently restated. Non-monetary
ttems measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of a gain or loss on change in fair value of the item.
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5 NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

The Group applied, for the first time, IFRS 16 "Leases". As required by IAS 8, the nature and effect of these changes, if any, are
disclosed below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2019, but do not have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. The Group has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has
been issued but is not yet effective.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-
Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for most leases
under a single on-balance sheet model, Lessor accounting under [FRS 16 is substantially unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors will

continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in IAS 17. Therefore, IFRS 16 did not
have an impact for leases where the Group is the lessor.

The Group applied modified retrospective approach, which requires the recognition of the cumulative effect of initially applying
IFRS 16 at, 1 January 2019, to the retained earnings and not restate prior years. Since the Group recognized the right-of-use

assels at the amount equal to the lease liabilities {excluding prepayment and accruals), there was no impact to the retained

earnings. The Group clected to use the transition practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts that

wetre previously identified as leases, applying TAS 17 and IFRIC 4 at the date of initial application. The Group also elected to

use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less and
do not contain a purchase option {“short-term leases’), and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value (‘low-
value assets’),

At 1 January 2019, the Group recognized SR 89 million of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of SR 77 million (excluding
prepayments of SR 12 million). The Group's consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was impacted by depreciation of right of use of assets of SR 20.3 million and interest expenses of SR
2 million. The Group's consolidated statement of cash flows for year ended 31 December 2019 was impacted by a shift from the
cash generated from operations of SR 14.6 million to the net cash used in financing activities.

Nature of the effect of adoption of IFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land, warehouses and equipment. Before the adoption of IFRS 16, the Group
classified each of its leases (as lessee) at the inception date as either a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease was classified
as a finance lease if it transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased asset to the
Group: otherwise it was classified as an operating lease. Finance leases were capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the
inception date the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
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5 NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS {continued)
IFRS 16 Leases (continued)
Nature of the effect of adoption of IFRS 16 (continued)

Lease payments were apportioned between interest (recognised as finance costs) and reduction of the lease liability. In an
operating lease, the leased property was not capitalised and the lease payments were recognised as rent expense in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Any prepaid rent and accrued rent were recognised under prepayments and trade and
other payables, respectively. Upon adeption of TFRS 16, the Group applied a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The standard provides specific transition requirements and
practical expedients, which has been applied by the Group. By class of underlying asset, not to separate non-lease components
from lease components, and instead account for each lease component and any associated non-lease components as a single
lease component.

Leases previously accounted for as operating leases

The Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for those [eases previously classified as operating leases, except
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The right-of-use assets were recognised based on the amount equal to the
lease liabilities, adjusted for any related prepaid and accrued lease payments previously recognised. Lease liabilities were

recognised based on the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the
date of initial application.

The Group also applied the available practical expedients wherein it:

* Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics.
* Relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous immediately before the date of initial application.

» Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends within 12 months at the date of initial
application

* By class of underlying asset, not to separate non-lease components from lease components, and instead account for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a single lease component,

* Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

+ Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the coniract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.
Summary of new accounting policies

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless
the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets
are subject to impairment,

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by
the Group and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on
which the event or condition ihat triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed
lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.
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5 NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS (continued)
IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Summary of new accounting policies (continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of equipment (i.e., those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of
low-value assets recognition exemption that are considered of low value (i.e., below SR 18,750). Lease payments on shori-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate, being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar econiomic environment with similar terms and
conditions.

Significant judgment in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by
management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Group’s business needs.
Management exercises significant judgment in determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably
certain to be exercised (see note 3).

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial positien and consolidated statement of income and other
comprehensive income

Right-of-use assets

Equipment,
Offices and
motor Lease
Land Warehouses vehicles Total liabilities
SR 080 SR ‘000 SR 000 SR '000 SR '000
Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when
applying IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 32,663 33,190 3,183 89,036 77,017
Additions _ - 623 623 510
Depreciation expense 1,972) (17,170) (1,237 (20,379) .
Interest charged = - = 2,072
Payments - - - (14,585)
At 31 December 2019 30,691 36,020 2,569 69,280 65,014

The Group has used weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 3.83% for calculating the present value of the lease
liabilities.

IFRIC Inferpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of IAS 12 Income Taxes. It does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically
include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The Interpretation specifically
addresses the following:

* Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

* The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities

* How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax crediis and tax rates
* How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

The Group determines whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other uncertain
tax treatments and uses the approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.
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5 NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS (continued)
Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Under IFRS 9, a debt instrument can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
provided that the contractual cash flows are ‘solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding’ (the
SPPI criterion) and the instrument is held within the appropriate business model for that classification. The amendments to IFRS
9 clarify that a financial asset passes the SPPI criterion regardless of an event or circumstance that causes the early termination
of the contract and irrespective of which party pays or receives reasonable compensation for the early termination of the
contract, These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial siatements of the Group,

Amendments to IAS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments to IAS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during a reporting
period. The amendments specify that when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during the annual reporting
period, an entity is requited to determine the current service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used to remeasure the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the
benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event. An entity is also required to determine the net interest for the
remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or seitlement using the net defined benefit liability (asset)
reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets afier that event, and the discount rate used to remeasure that net
defined benefit liability (asset).The amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as it did
not have any plan amendments, curtailments, or setilements during the year.

Amendments to IAS 28: Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures
The amendments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 to long-term interests in an associate or joint venture to which the equity
method is not applied but that, in substance, form part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture (long-term

interests). This clarification is relevant because it implies that the expected credit loss model in IFRS 9 applies to such long-term
interests.

The amendments also clarifted that, in applying IFRS 9, an entity does not take into account of any losses of the associate or
joint venture, or any impairment losses on the net investment, recognised as adjustments to the net investment in the associate or
joint venture that arise from applying IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. These amendments had no impact
on the consolidated financial statements as the Group does not have long-term interests in its associate or joint venture.

Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle

IFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendmenits clarify that, when an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, it applies the requirements for
a business combination achieved in stages, including remeasuring previously held interests in the assets and liabilities of the
Jjoint operation at fair value. In doing so, the acquirer remeasures its entire previously held interest in the joint operation. An
entity applies those amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or afier | January 2019, with early application permitted. These amendments had no
impact on the financial statements of the Company, as there is no transaction where joint control is obtained.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

An entity that participates in, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation might obtain joint control of the joint operation
in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business as defined in IFRS 3. The amendments clarify that the
previously held interests in that joint operation are not remeasured.

An entity applies those amendments to transactions in which it obtains joint control on or after the beginning of the first annual
reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early application permitted. These amendments had no impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group, as there is no transaction where a joint control is obtained.
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5 NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS (continued)
Annuat Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle {continued)
IAS 12 Income Taxes

The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly to past transactions or events
that generated distributable profits than to distributions to owners. Therefore, an entity recognises the income tax consequences
of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where it originally recognised those past
transactions or events. An entity applies the amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019,
with early application permitted. When the entity first applies those amendments, it applies them to the income tax consequences
of dividends recognised on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period. These amendments had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop a
qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete,
The entity applies the amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or afier the beginning of the annual reporting period in which
the entity first applies those amendments. An entity applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after

I January 2019, with early application permitted. These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

6 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the

Group’s consolidated financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these new and amended standards
and interpretations, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

In May 2017, the IASB issued [FRS 17 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 17), a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance
contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure, Once effective, IFRS 17 will replace IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts (IFRS 4) that was issued in 2005. IFRS 17 applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life,
direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entitics that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial
instruments with discretionary participation features.

A few scope exceptions will apply. The overall objective of IFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts
that is more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in IFRS 4, which are largely based on
grandfathering previous locat accounting policies, TFRS 17 provides a comprehensive mode! for insurance contracts, covering
afl relevant accounting aspects. The core of IFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:

* A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)
* A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

IFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, with comparative figures required. Early
application is permitted, provided the entity also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or before the date it first applies [FRS 17. This
standard is not applicable to the Group.

Amendments to IAS I and IAS 8: Definition of Material

In October 2018, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to align the definition of ‘material’ across the standards and to clarify certain
aspects of the definition. The new definition states that, *Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those consolidated financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity. The

amendments to the definition of material is not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2019

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

7.1 The office buildings and plant and equipment are constructed on land leased from the Royal Commission for Jubail and
Yanbu. The lease is initially for a period of 30 vears commencing from 29 Dhul-Qada 1428 H (corresponding to 9
December 2007) and is renewable for further periods thereafier.

7.2 The Group’s plant and equipment are secured by (i) liens against term loan from Saudi Industrial Development Fund (note
18.4) and (ii) assignment of residual proceeds against term loans from consortium of commercial banks (note 18.2) and
Public Investments Fund (note 18.3).

7.3 Atthe reporting date, construction work in progress represents costs incurred in connection with the plant activities.

7.4 As per the Group's policy, the normal turnaround cycle occur at the interval of 72 months and planned turnaround costs are
deferred and amortized over the next planned turnaround.

7.5 In 2018, the Group reviewed the estimated usefu! life of certain non-current assets and changes in the estimated useful life
has been effected prospectively. Had this change not taken place, the profit for the year 2018 would have been increased by
SR 236.5 million.

The yearly
effect of
more (less)
depreciation
charge

SR IIOOOH

For the year 2018 236,537

For each year from 2019 up to 2038 (11,493)

For the year 2039 (6,177)

7.6 The depreciation charge has been allocated as Tollows:

2019 2018
SR "000" SR IIOOOII
Cost of sales (note 25) 856,792 1,104,585
General and administrative expenses (note 27) 9,325 10,839
866,117 1,115,424
8 RIGHT OF USE ASSETS
Offices and
Land  Warehouses Equipment motor vehicles Total
SR ‘000 SR 000 SR 000 SR 000 SR '000
Cost:
Right of use assets recognised as of 1 January
2019 on adoption of IFRS 16 {note 5) 32,663 53,190 491 2,692 89,036

Additions - - - 623 623

As of 31 December 2019 32,663 53,190 491 3,315 89,659

Accumulated depreciation:

Charge for the year 1,972 17,170 123 1,114 20,379
As of 31 December 2019 1,972 17,170 123 1,114 20,379
Net book amounts:

At 31 December 2019 30,691 36,020 368 2,201 69,280
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its

subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2019

8 RIGHT OF USE ASSETS (continued)

During the year, depreciation of right-of-use-assets of SR 20,382 thousand have been recognised in consolidated statement income

and other comprehensive income,

9 EMPLOYEES' LOANS

Employees' loans represent non-interest bearing housing loans provided to Saudi employees and are secured by mortgage over
property purchased under the employee home ownership program. The loans are repayable in monthly installments within a
maximum period of 15 years. The installments due within one year are included in prepayments and other receivables under current

assets. The carrying value at the reporting date presented as following:

2019 2018
SR 000" SR 000"
Non-current portion - presented under non-current assets 138,978 128,464
Current portion - presented under prepayments and other receivables (note 12) 29,944 27,744
168,922 156,208

10 TRADE RECEIVABLES
2019 2018
SR "00o" SR "000"
<30 days 871,665 1,028,366
31-60 days 32,620 5,696
61-90 days 1,812 1,320
906,097 1,035,382

10.1  Asat31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, none of the accounts receivable were impaired.

10.2 Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the Group’s credit period is 30-60 days after which trade receivables are
considered to be past due. Unimpaired trade receivables are unsecured and are expected, on the basis of past experience, to

be fully recoverable.

11 INVENTORIES
2019 2018
SR "000" SR 000"
Spares 423,005 411,506
Finished goods 357,780 560,405
Catalyst, chemicals and additives 135,319 132,798
Raw materials (note 11.1) 1,699 748
917,803 1,105,457
i11.]  The Group purchases its raw materials primarily from three suppliers including twe affiliates in the Kingdom of Saudi

Arabia,

12 Prepayments and other receivables 2019 2018
SR "og0" SR 000"
Prepayments 34,173 27,429
Employees' loans - current portion (note 9) 29,944 27,744
Value added tax receivables, net 17,321 31,732
Cash margin against bank guarantee 2,264 2,264
Accrued interest income 245 5,780
Recoverable insurance claim - 136,759
Cash margin against issuance of Sukuk (note 20) - 16,455
Other receivables 1,610 8,759
85557 256,922
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2019

13 RELATED PARTIES' TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Related parties represent major sharcholders, directors and key management personnel of the Group, and entities controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by such parties. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Group’s
management.

a The following are the major related parties' transactions :
Nature of 2019 2018
Related parties Relationship transactions SR "000" SR "000"
Saudi Industrial Investment
Group Cempany Shareholder  Support services 760 406
Saudi Chevron Phillips Company Related party Sales 203,940 261,363
Purchases 69,349 19,804
Support services 313,410 341,354
Jubail Chevron Phillips Company Related party Sales 302,415 374,858
Purchases 1,064,058 1,197,694
Support services 853 -
Chevron Phillips Chemical Related party Royalty (note 25) 51,323 51,488
Chevron Phillips Chemical
Global Employment Company LLC Related party Support services 72,818 77,639
Chevron Phillips Chemical Marketing fees
International Sales LI.C Related party  (note 26) 259,748 317,231
Support services 10,253 7,583
Chemical Services Inc. Related party Support services 18,743 17,487
Chevron Phillips Chemicals International Inc. Related party Support services 401 668
Chevron Phillips Chemicals International N.V, Related party Support services 765 788
Chevron Phillips Chemical Asia Pte Limited. Related party Support services 604 593
Chevron Phillips (Shanghai) Corp. Related party Support services 390 386
CPC Global Employment Company LLC. Related party Support services 634 1,309

(note a.1) The Group entered into a common facilities agreement (the “Agreement™) with Saudi Chevron Phillips Company
pursuani to which, affiliate provides support services to the Group in operations and maintenance, management support and
technical support.

(note a.2) The Group entered into a royalty agreement (the Agreement”) with Chevron Phillips Chemical Company LLC in prior
years under which the related party charged the royalty for the use of pelymerization processes.

(note a,3) The non-controlling partner of Saudi Polymers Company (a consolidated subsidiary) have provided non-interest bearing
subordinated loan of SR 1,131.7 million in prior years to finance the construction of a petrochemical plant. The repayment of the
loan is subject to certain covenants being met under the terms of commercial loan facilities (note 18). The Group has repaid SR 945
million in current and prior years.
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2019

13 RELATED PARTIES' TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (continued)

b The following are the related parties’ ending balances:

bl Amounts due from related parties under current assets:

2019 2018
SR "006" SR "000"
Saudi Chevron Phiilips Company 184,988 172,631
Jubail Chevron Phillips Company 52,238 48,695
237,226 221,326

b.2  Amounts due to related parties under current liabilities:
2019 2018
SR 060 SR "000"
Jubail Chevron Phillips Company 99,383 86,524
Saudi Chevron Phillips Company 65,509 72,187
Chevron Phillips Chemical International Sales LLC 41,993 48,200
Saudi Industrial Investment Group Company 1,169 409
Chevron Phillips Chemical Global Employment Company LLC - 2,261
208,054 209,581

[ The following are the key management personnel compensation:

Key management personnel represent board members, directors and key personnel of the Group. Remuneration for the year ended
31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 of key management of the Group are detailed as follows:

2019 2018
SR "000" SR "000"
Short-term employees' benefits 15,897 18,425
Terminal benefits 1,522 2,376
17,419 20,801
14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:
2019 2018
SR "00)" SR "000"
Bank balances 2,349,617 1,076,537
Short-term deposits 136,000 2,175,000
2,485,617 3,251,537

Short-term deposits which held as cash equivalents represent bank deposits are placed with local and foreign banks in Saudi Riyal
and US Dollar respectively, with original maturities of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Part of the Group’s cash and cash e¢quivalents amounting to SR 2,098 million (31 December 2018: SR 2,097 millicn) are assigned
as security against loan facilities from consortiums of commercial banks and Public Investment Fund ("PIF") (see note 18). This
includes SR 1,191 million (31 December 2018: SR 1,185 million) related to debt service requirements.
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its

subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
At 31 December 2019

15 SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital amounting to SR 4,800 miltion is divided into 480 million shares of SR 10 cach as of 31 December 2019 and

31 December 2018.

16 STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with the Saudi Arabian Regulations for Companies, 10% of net income for the year is required to be transferred
to the statutory reserve until the balance in the reserve equals 30% of the share capital. This reserve is not normally available

for distribution except in circumstances specified in the Saudi Arabian Companies Regulations.

17 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

17.1 Proportion of equity interest's held by non-controlling interests are as following:

Name Country of incorporation
Saudi Polymers Company Saudi Arabia
Gulf Polymers Distribution Company United Arab Emirates

17.2 Following are the movement of non-controlling interests during the year:

At the beginning of the year

share in net results

share in other comprehensive (loss) income
Income tax reimbursed by non-controlling partner

At the end of the year

18 TERM LOANS

Current Effective interest rate  Maturity
Consortium of commercial banks {note 18.1) Libor +1.05% 15-Dec-20
Consortium of commercial banks {note 18.2) Libor + 0.06% 15-Dec-20
Public Investments Fund (PIF) (note 18.3) Libor + 0.30% 31-Dec-20
Saudi [ndustrial Development Fund (SIDF) (note 18.4) 1.014% 8-Apr-20
Non-current Effective interest rate Muturity
Consortium of commercial banks (note 18.1) Libor + (1.05% - 1.15%) 2021 - 2023
Consortium of commercial banks (note 18.2) Libor + 0,06% 2021 - 2023
Public Investments Fund (PIF) (note 18.3) Libor + 0.50%

Saudi Industrial Development Fund (SIDF) (note 18.4) 1.014%

Less: unamortized transaction costs

2019 2018
35% 35%
35% 35%
2019 2018
SR 000 SR 060
3,648,431 3,037,340
343,691 534,968
(13,992) 9.853
123,671 66,270
4,101,801 3,648,431
2019 2018
SR "000" SR "0o0"
497,396 517,770
221,250 177,000
391,779 480,000
100,000 200,002
1,210,425 1,374,772
2019 2018
SR 000" SR "000"
2,673,505 3,300,773
765,108 1,031,933
- 424,849
- 100,002
3,438,613 4,857,557
(3:478) (6,637)
3,435,135 4,850,920
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2019

18

TERM LOANS (continued)

The movement in unamortized transaction costs in respect of these financing facilities is as follows:

Costs:

2019 2018
SR "000" SR 000"

At 1 January and 31 December 238,369 238,369
Amortization:

At 1 January 231,732 226,332
Charge for the year (note 29) 3,159 5,400
At 31 December 234,891 231,732
Balance at 31 December 3,478 6,637

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

The Group obtained commiercial loan facilities of SR 7,045.9 million (2018: SR 7,045.9 million) from a consertium of
commercial banks which was fully drawn at the reporting date (2018: fully drawn). The loan is secured by the
assignment of residual proceeds in project bank accounts, pledge and assignment over onshore project bank accounts
{2018: same). The loan is repayable in 22 successive semi-annual installments varying from 2% to 20% of the facilities
utilized, commenced from 15 June 2013. Accordingly, the portion of the loan payable before 1 January 2021 has been
classified under current liabilities. The facilities are subject to interest at LIBOR plus a margin progressively increasing
from 0.80% to 1.15% over the life of the loans.

The Group obtained a loan facility of SR 2,212.5 million (2018: SR 2,212.5 million) from a consortium of commercial
banks. The facility is guaranteed by the Export-Import Bank of the U.S. At the reporting date the loan was fully drawn
(2018: fully drawn). The loan is secured by the assignment of residual proceeds of plant and equipment, charge and
assignment over secured project documents, charge and assignment over offshore project bank accounts, pledge and
assighment over onshore project bank accounts {2018: same). The loan is repayable in 22 successive semi-annual
installments varying from 3% to 8% of the facilities utilized, commenced from 15 June 2013. Accordingly, the portion
of loan payable before 1 January 2021 has been classified under current liabilities. The facilities are subject to interest
at LIBOR plus 0.06%.

The Group obtained a term loan facility of SR 3,000 million (2018: SR 3,000 million) from PIF which was fully drawn
at the reporting date (2018: fully drawn). The loan is secured by assignment of residual proceeds of plant and
equipment, charge and assignment over secured project documents, charge and assignment over offshore project bank
accounts, pledge and assignment over onshore project bank accounts (2018: same). The loan is repayable in 15 half
vearly installments. The first two installments were 1% each, and the remaining 13 installments at the rate of 7% to 9%
of the entire loan utilized, commenced from 31 December 2013, The loan is subject to interest at LIBOR plus 0.5%
along with an upfront fee of 0.5% of the principal amount of loan.

The Group also obiained two loan facilitiss of SR 600 million each (2018: SR 600 million each) from SIDF for
financing the construction of the petrochemical plant. At the reporting date both facilities were fully drawn (2018: fully
drawn). The loans are secured by liens on the Group's plant and equipment for the Ethylene, Metathesis, 1- hexene, and
Polyethylene units, and assignment of insurance proceeds and technology rights (2018: same). The loans are repayable
in 14 half yearly installments at the rate varying from 4.17% to 8.33% of the facilities utilized, commenced from 18
December 2013, The loans were subject to an upfront fec of 7.5% of the principal amount of two loan facilities.
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

At 31 December 2019

18 TERM LOANS {continued)

{85  Following are the combined aggregate amounts of next five years' maturities of the term loans at the consolidated
statement of financial position date:

2019 2018
Years SR "000" SR "000"
2019 - 1,374,772
2020 1,210,425 1,263,867
2021 762,896 783,268
2022 931,500 956,960
2023 1,744,217 1,853,462
Total 4,649,038 6,232,329
18.6  The Group is required to comply with certain covenants under all the loan facility agreements mentioned above.
19 NON-CONTROLLING PARTNER'S SUBORDINATED LOAN 2019 2018
SR "004" SR "000"
Non-controlling partner's subordinated loan 182,696 413,927

Non-controlling partnet's subordinated loan is repayable subject to certain covenants being met under the terms of the
commercial loan facilities.

19.]  The movement in non-controlling partner's subordinated loan was as follows:

2019 2018

SR 000" SR "000"

At 1 January 413,927 817,988
Notional interest charge for the year (note 29) 10,527 42,189
Remeasurement gain (note 28) (5,508) -
Payment during the vear (236,250) (446,250)
At 31 December 182,696 413,927

20 SUKUK

On 25 Sha’aban 1435H (correspending to 23 June 2014), the Company issued Sukuk amounting to SR 1.2 billion at par value
of SR 1 million each without discount or premium. The Sukuk issued had a variable rate of return at SIBOR plus 1.7% margin,
It was payable semi-annually. The Sukuk were due at par value on its maturity date of 20 Shawwal 1440H (corresponding to 23
June 2019).

On 19 Ramadan 1439H (corresponding to 3 June 2018), the Board of Directors resclved to re-purchase the issued Sukuk.

Accordingly, the Company re-purchased part of the issued sukuk amounting to SR 122 million. The Company repaid the
remaining Sukuk during the year.

In accordance with the Sukuk agreement dated 25 Sha’ban 1435H (corresponding to 23 June 2014), an amount of SR 16.5
million was deposited as a cash margin held by Riyad Capital Company in an open account on behalf of the Sukukholders’
Agent (note 12). The cash margin previously held by Riyad Capital Company was released during the year,

21 LEASE LIABILITY 2019 2018
SR "000" SR "000"

Non-current 52,097 -
Current 12,917 -
65,014 -

The Group has used weighted average incremental botrowing rate of 3,83% for calculating the present value of the lease
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

At 31 December 2019

22 EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS

In accordance with the provisions of IAS 19, management has carried out an exercise to assess the present value of its defined
benefit obligations at reporting date in respect of employees' benefits payable under relevant local regulations and contractual
arrangements. The main actuarial assumptions used to calculate the unfunded defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2019 2018
Discount rate 3.3% 4.5%
Expected rate of salary increase 4.0% 4.0%

The present values of the defined benefit obligations at reporting date were computed using the actuarial assumptions set out
above.

2019 2018

SR "o0p" SR "000"

Present value of defined benefit obligation 190,513 191,238
Re-measurement loss (gain) on defined benefit plans 40,649 (28,151)
Balance as at 31 December 231,162 163,087

The break up of net benefit costs charged to consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive income is as follows:

2019 2018
SR "000" SR "000"
Current service cost 20,824 24,543
Interest cost on benefit obligation 7,615 6,206
28,439 30,749
22,1 Re-measurement loss (gain) on defined benefit plans arose due to the followings:

2019 2018
SR 000" SR "000"
Actuarial losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions — 6,442
Actuarial losses (gains) arising from changes in financial assumptions 36,106 (48,846)
Experience adjustments 4,543 14,253
Net benefit loss (gain) 40,649 (28,151)

22.2 Movement in the present value of defined unfunded benefit obligation is as follows:
2019 2018
SR "000" SR "000"
At 1 January 163,087 165,379
Net benefits charge for the year 28,439 30,749
Benefits paid (1,013) (4,890)
Re-measurement loss {gain) on defined benefit plans 40,649 (28,151)
At 31 December 231,162 163,087
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2019

22 EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS (continued}

22.3  The quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at the reporting date is as follows:

Increase/ 2019 2018

(decrease) SR 000" SR "000"

Discount rate 0.25% (8,140) (5.442)
(0.25%) 8,599 5,739

Expected rate of salary increase 0.25% 8,518 5,753
0.25%) (8,111) {5,480)

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the defined benefit
obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity
analysis are based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may
net be representative of an actual change in the defined benefits obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would
oceur in isolation of one another.

22.4  The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

2019 2018

SR 000" SR "000"

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 6,553 5,304
Between 2 and 3 vears 29,032 31,986
Beyond 5 years 46,595 64,372
Total expected payments 82,180 101,662

22.5  The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 15.9 vears ( 2018: 15.2
years).

23 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES

2019 2018

SR 000" SR 000"

Accrued expenses 243,368 438,188
Advances from customers 29,029 63,645
Other payables 65,427 103,371
337,824 605,204

23.1  Terms and conditions of the financial liabilities:

* Other payables are nen-interest bearing and have an average term of six months.
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At 31 December 2019

24 ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX PROVISIONS

The Group is subject to zakat and income tax in accordance with the regulation of the General Authority of Zakat and Income
Tax (“GAZT”). Provisions for zakat and tax are charged to the consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive
income. The Company and its subsidiary (Saudi Polymers Company) are filing separate zakat and income tax declarations with

GAZT.

Income tax related to non-controlling partner (non-Saudi partner) in Saudi Polymers Company

Current tax
Deferred tax

Zakat related to National Petrochemical Company
Zakat related to Saudi Polymers Company

Zakat and income tax charge

The major components of income tax expense and zakat for the year ended 31 December are as follows:

24.1  Income Tax

Current income tax charge (note 24.2)
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous year

Deferred tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences

Income tax reported in the consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive income

24,2 Current income tax expense

2019 2018

SR "000" SR "000“
52,133 97,126
15,218 335,015
67,351 132,141
30,456 54,753
40,344 43,867
70,800 98,620
138,151 230,761
2019 2018

SR "000" SR "000"
52,140 97,108
N 18
52,133 97,126
15,218 35,015
67,351 132,141

The current income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2019 is calculated at income tax rate of 20 % (2018: 20%).

24,3 Effective income tax rate reconciliation

Accounting profit related to Saudi Polymers Company
("SPCO") before tax attributable to non-controlling
pattner in SPC {non-Saudi partner)

Tax at the applicable raie to the income related to non-
controlling partner in SPCO (non-Saudi partner)

Tax effect on the deferred income tax rate and the expense
that are not deductible for tax purposes

Tax charged during the year in consolidated statement of
incomie and other comprehensive income

2019 2019 2018 2018

SR "o00" % SR "00g" %
343,392 611,499

68,678 20% 122,300 20%

(1,327) (0.4%) 9,841 1.6%

67,331 19.60% 132,141 21.60%
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24 ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX PROVISIONS (continued)
24.4  Deferred tax

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. Major components of deferred tax Iiability and asset of

SPCO at the vear end were:
2019 2018
SR 000" SR "000"
Deferred tax liability
Property, plant and equipment 758,074 755,595
Total deferred tax liability 758,074 755,595
Deferred tax assets
Employees® benefits 15.467 10,826
Taxable loss carry forward 416,334 433,714
Total deferred tax asset 431,801 444,540
Net deferred tax liability 326,273 311,055
24.5  Zakat
Charge for the year
The zakat charge relating to the Group consists of:
2019 2018
SR 000" SR "000"
Charge for the year 70,800 98.620

The differences between the financial and the zakatable results are mainly due to adjustments for certain costs/claims based on

the relevant fiscal regulations

246 Movement in the zakat and income tax provisions and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

31 December 2019
Zakat and income tax provisions
Deferred tax
Current tax Zakat Total liabhilities, net
SR "000" SR "000" SR "000" SR "000"
At 1 January 64,125 521,552 585,677 311,055
Charge for the year 52,133 70,800 122,933 15,218
Payments during the year (112,676) (30,056) (142,732) -
At 31 December 3,582 562,296 565,878 326,273
31 December 2018
Zakat and i t isi
akat and income tax provisions Deferred tax
Current fax Zakat Total liabilities, net
SR "000" SR "000" SR "000” SR "000"
At | January 43,958 436,544 480,502 276,040
Charge for the year 97,126 98,620 195,746 35,015
Payments during the year (76,959) (13,612) (90,571} -
At 31 December 64,125 521,552 385,677 311,035

40



National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
At 31 December 2019

24 ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX PROVISIONS (continaed)

24.7  Status of assessments

Status of assessments of National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem)

The Company has filed its Zakat and Income Tax returns with the General Authority of Zakat and Tax (“GAZT™) up to 2018.
The Company has finalised its zakat status with the General Authority of Zakat and Tax (“GAZT™) for all years up to 31
December 2010 on a standalone basis. Number of additional liability have been issued by GAZT as follows:

The GAZT raised assessments for the years from 2011 to 2013 claiming additional zakat liability of SR 95.5 million. The
Company has filed an appeal against the additional zakat liability with the Preliminary Appeal Committes ("PAC"). The
Company received revised zakat assessments for the years from 2011 to 2013 from GAZT claiming additional zakat liability of
SR 5.74 million. The Company accepted and paid SR 3.47 million and filed an appeal for the remaining balance SR 2.27
million with the Higher Appeal Committee ("HAC") and the HAC's hearing is awaited.

GAZT raised an assessments for the years from 2014 to 2016 claiming additional zakat liability of SR 204.2 million. The
Company has filed an appeal against the additional zakat liability with the Preliminary Appeal Committee ("PAC") and the
PAC’s hearing is awaited. The assessments for 2017 and 2018 still under GAZT's review.

The Company’s management believes that the provision made in the consolidated statements of financial position is adequate
to cover any additional zakat liability that may arise from GAZT.

Status of assessments of Saudi Polymers Company

The subsidiary has filed its zakat and income tax returns with the General Authority of Zakat and Tax (“GAZT”) up to 2018.
The assessment for the period ended 31 December 2008 has been {inalised with GAZT with nil liability. The assessments for
the years from 2009 through 2018 have not yet been raised by GAZT.

Zakat base has been computed based on the managements' understanding of the zakat regulations enforced in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia. The zakat regulations in Saudi Arabia are subject to different interpretations. The assessments to be raised by
GAZT could be different from the declarations filed by the Companies in Saudi Arabia,

Status of assessments of Gulf Pofymers Distribution Company FZC0

The subsidiary registered in the Dubai Airport Free Zone and the subsidiary is exempted from income tax.
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25 COST OF SALES

Cost of material consumed

Depreciation (note 7)

Utilities, supplies and services

Support services recharged by affiliates (note 13)
Employee's benefits expense

Royalty (note 13)

Contract services

Other

26 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Marketing fees {note 13)

Freight and distribution

Terminating and warehousing

Employee's benefits expense

Support services recharged by affiliates (note 13)
Other

27 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Support services recharged by affiliates (note 13)
Remunerations of board of directors and key personnel (note 13)
Employee's benefits expense

Depreciation (note 7)

Bank charges

Professional fees

Other

2019 2018
SR "000" SR "000"
3,420,544 3,903,299
856,792 1,104,585
607,519 552,782
296,224 313,826
203,400 192,600
51,323 51,488
48,371 63,709
74,543 62,670
5,558,716 6,244,959
2019 2018

SR "000" SR "000"
259,748 317,231
70,234 60,821
57,627 81,934
8,228 7,575
5,145 =
20,949 4,057
421,931 471,618
2019 2018

SR "000" SR "000"
118,262 134,390
17,419 20,801
10,597 17,947
9,325 10,839
6,212 6,467
566 929
12,199 13,628
174,580 205,001
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28 OTHER INCOME, NET

2019 2018
SR "000" SR "000"
Commission income 77,757 58,346
Oil insurance claim 11,768 186,786
Remeasurement gain of non-controiling partner's subordinated loan (note 19) 5,508 -
Foreign currency exchange loss (6,64%) (19,740)
Other, net 9,776 6,256
98,160 231,648

29 FINANCE COSTS
2019 2018
SR "000" SR "000"
Interest on term loans 171,224 203,160
Interest on Sukuk 24,788 49,692
Interest on non-controlling pariner's subordinated loan (note 19) 10,527 42,189
Interest cost on benefit obligation (note 22) 7,615 6,206
Amortization of transaction costs on term loans (note 18) 3,159 5,400
Interest on lease liabilities (note 5) 2,072 -
Discounting of employees' loans granted during the year 1,061 1,778
Other service charges 880 948
221,326 309,373

30 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net income for the vear attributable to shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of shares during the year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations:

For the year ended 31 December

2019 2018
Net income atiributable to shareholders of the Company (SR ‘000) 674,470 1,165,382
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (*000) 480,000 480,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the shareholders of the Company 1.41 243

There has been no item of dilution affecting the weighted average number of ordinary shares,
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31 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group has authorised future capital expenditure amounting to SR 83 million {31 December 2018: SR 135 million) relating
to certain expansion projects.

32 CONTINGENCIES

During 2010, the Company and the non-controlling partner in Saudi Polymers Company (a consolidated subsidiary) resolved to
increase the capital of Saudi Polymers Company by SR 3,394 million, which will cause the non-controlling partner to incur
additional costs; the management of the Company has agreed to compensate the non-controlling partner by making annual
payments in the future based on the future earnings of Saudi Polymers Company, considering the non-distributable cash as a
result of the proposed capital increase. During the vear ended 31 December 2019, the partner of SPCO (the Company and the
non-controlling) have resolved to decrease the share capital of SPCO with the same amount. The legal process for the reduction
in capital has not been completed till the year end.

The Group’s bankers has issued guarantees, on behalf of the Group, amounting to SR 459 million (31 December 2018: SR 389
million) relating to uplift of feedstock for plant from a supplier and zakat appeals.

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations, The Group’s

principal financial assets include employees' loans, trade and other receivables, short term deposits and cash and cash

equivalents that detive directly from its operations. The Group’s management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks which are summarized below.,

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk. The Group’s senior management oversees the management
of these risks. The Group’s senior management regularly review the policies and procedures to ensure that all the financial risks
are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group’s policies and risk objectives. The Group does not engage
into any hedging activities. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are
summarized below.

33.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and commodity price risk.
Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings as well as bank balances. The sensitivity analysis in
the following sections relate to the position as at 31 December in 2019 and 31 December 2018.

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates to sukuk and long-term debt
obligations with floating interest rates. The interest raie risk is parilally mitigated by interest income, which Group earns at
floating interest rates from its bank deposits.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of statement of comprehensive income to reasonable possible changes in
interest rates, with all other variable held constant,

Increase/ Effect on

decrease in profit

basis points before tax

SR '000

-50 59,128

2019 +50 (59,128)
2018 -50 97,253

+50 (97.253)
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
33.1 Market risk (continued)

(b} Foreign Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group deals mainly in Saudi Riyal (SR} and US $. As the SR is pegged to the US §,
balances in US § are not considered to represent significant currency risk.

(c) Commodity price risk

The Group is exposed to the impact of market fluctuations of the price of various inputs to production including naphtha,
benzene, natural gas and electricity. The Group prepares annual budgets and periodic forecasts including sensitivity analyses in
respect of various levels of crude oil prices to manage the risk. The risk is partially mitigated by fluctuations in the commeodity
prices of the Group's finished products (i.e. Polypropylene and Pelyethylene).

33.2  Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to
incur a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk on its cash and cash equivalents, short term deposits, trade
receivables, amounts due from related parties and employees' loans as follows:
2019 2018
SR "000" SR "000"

Employees' loans 168,922 156,208
Amounts due from related parties 237,226 221,326
Trade receivables 906,097 1,035,382
Cash and cash equivalents 2,485,617 3,251,537

3,797,862 4,664,453

The Group manages its credit risk with respect io the customers by dealing with customers having reliable credit history,
securing high quality collateral when necessary and by monitoring outstanding balances and with respect to banks by only
dealing with reputable banks.

333 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet financial commitments associated with
financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to realize financial assets quickly at an amount close to its fair
value. The Group manages its liquidity risk by monitoring working capital and cash flow requirements on regular basis and
ensuring that available of bank facilities, as and if requested. The Group’s terms of contracts require amounts to be paid within

30-90 days of the date of billings. Trade payables are normally settled within 30-45 days of billing date or receipt of a correctly
rendered invoice.
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
33.3 Liguidity risk (continued)

The table below summarizes the maturities of the Group’s undiscounted financial liabilities at reperting date, based on
contractual payment dates and current market interest rates.

31 December 2019
On Less than 3
requested months 3 to 12 months 1o 5 years > 3 years Total
SR "000" SR 000" SR "000" SR 006" SR"000" SR "00D"
Term loans - - 1,210,425 3,438,613 - 4,649,038
Non-controlling partner's

subordinated loan - ) - 182,696 - 182,696
Trade payables B 203,467 - = - 203,467

Accrued expenses and other
payables - - 337,824 - - 337.824
Amounts due to related partics 208,054 - - - - 208,054
208,054 203,467 1,548,249 3,621,309 - 5,581,079

31 December 2018
On Lessthan 3
requested months 3 to 12 months I to 5 years > 5 years Total
SR "000" SR "000" SR "000" SR "000" SR "000" SR "000"
Term loans - - 1,374,772 4,857,557 - 6,232,329
Nom-controlling partner's

subordinated loan - - - 413,927 - 413,927
Sukuk - - 1,078,000 - 1,078,000
Trade payables - 37,962 - - - 37,962

Accrued expenses and other
payables - - 605,204 5 - 605,204
Amounts due to related parties 209,581 E - - - 209,581
209,581 37,962 3,057,976 5,271,484 - 8,577,003

334  Excessive risk concentration
Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same
geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly

affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group’s
performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

335 Capital management

For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes share capital and all other equity reserves attributable to
the owners of the Group. The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to maximize the shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group includes within net debt, term loans, trade and accrued expenses and
other payables and Sukuk, less bank balances.
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

33.5  Capital management (continued)

2019 2018
SR "e00" SR "000"

Term loans 4,649,038 6,232,329
Sukuk - 1,078,000
Trade payables 203,467 37,962
Accrued expenscs and other payables 337,824 605,204
Less: cash and cash equivalents 2,485,617y (3,251,537)
Net debt 2,704,712 4,701,958
Non-controlling partner's subordinated [oan 182,696 413,927
Equity 12,249,795 11,388,612
Total equity and non-controlling partner’s subordinated loan 12,432,491 11,802,539
Capital and net debt 15,137,203 16,504,497
Gearing ratio 22% 40%

34 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The management assessed that the fair values of bank balances, short term deposits, trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables approximate their carrying values largely due to the short-term maturities of these financial instruments.

The management has assessed the fair value of employee loans and non-controlling partner's subordinated loan based on level 3
hierarchy, which is not materially different from their respective carrying values.

The fair values of the Group’s interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using the DCF method using discount
rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period.

35 SEGMENT INFORMATION

In respect of performance appraisal and allocation of resources, the Group’s management is of the opinion that all activities and
operations of the Group comprise one single operating segment, the petrochemical sector. Therefore, financial reports are
issued only for geographical segments.

Geographical segments

Operating assets are located in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The sales are geographically distributed as follows:

E 2019 2018

% %

Domestic/Middle East 20 19
Asia 55 51
Europe/Aftrica 25 30
100 100

36 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In the opinion of the management, there have been no significant subsequent events since the period ended 31 December 2019
that would have a material impact on the consolidated financial position of the Group as reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.
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